

**AMENDED BYLAWS OF
THE ACCELERATED SCHOOLS
AS OF
June 10, 2026**

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I Purposes.....4

ARTICLE II Offices4

 Section 1. Principal Office4

 Section 2. Other Offices.....4

ARTICLE III Membership.....4

 Section 1. Corporation without Members.....4

ARTICLE IV Board of Trustees.....4

 Section 1. Powers.....4

 Section 2. Limitations5

 Section 3. Dedication of Assets6

 Section 4. Number of Trustees.....6

 Section 5. Nominations and Qualifications of Trustees.....6

 Section 6. Election7

 Section 7. Terms of Office of Trustees.....8

 Section 8. Resignation and Removal8

 Section 9. Vacancies8

 Section 10. Place of Meeting9

 Section 11. Meetings; Annual Meeting.....9

 Section 12. Regular Meetings.....9

 Section 13. Notice of Meetings.....9

 Section 14. Special Meetings.....9

 Section 15. Quorum10

 Section 16. Action Must be Taken During a Meeting.....10

 Section 17. Teleconference Meetings10

 Section 18. Adjournment.....11

 Section 19. Rights of Inspection.....11

 Section 20. Board Committees11

 Section 21. Meetings of Committees.....13

 Section 22. Fees and Compensation.....14

 Section 23 Non-liability of Trustees.....14

 Section 24 Interested Persons.....14

 Section 25. Standard of Care.....14

 Section 26 Contracts or Transactions With Mutual Trustees.....14

 Section 27. Corporate Loans and Advances.....14

 Section 28. Annual Report15

ARTICLE V Officers.....15

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
ARTICLE V Officers.....	15
Section 1. Officers.....	15
Section 2. Appointment of Officers.....	15
Section 3. Subordinate Officers	15
Section 4. President of the Board of Trustees.....	16
Section 5. Vice President of the Board of Trustees.....	16
Section 6. Chief Executive Officer	16
Section 7. Secretary.....	16
Section 8. Treasurer	17
Section 9. Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers.....	17
Section 10. Removal and Resignation.....	17
Section 11. Vacancies	18
Section 12. Fairness of Compensation	18
ARTICLE VI Indemnification of Trustees, Officers, Employees and Agents	18
Section 1 Indemnification.....	18
Section 2. Insurance.....	18
ARTICLE VII Miscellaneous	19
Section 1. Fiscal Year	19
Section 2. Checks, Drafts, Etc.....	19
Section 3. Endorsement or Execution of Documents and Contracts.....	19
ARTICLE VIII Amendments.....	19
ARTICLE IX Non-discrimination Statement	19

**AMENDED BYLAWS OF
THE ACCELERATED SCHOOLS**

ARTICLE I
Purposes

THE ACCELERATED SCHOOLS, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (the “Corporation”), is organized under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law for public purposes. The specific purpose for which this Corporation is organized is to manage, operate, guide, direct and promote educational institutions, including, without limitation, Accelerated Charter Elementary School, The Accelerated School, and Wallis Annenberg High School, and to carry on other educational and charitable activities associated with this purpose as allowed by law.

ARTICLE II
Offices

Section 1. Principal Office.

The Corporation’s principal office shall be located at any place within the State of California as designated by the Board of Trustees (the “Board”). The Board is granted full power and authority to change the principal office from one location to another within California.

Section 2. Other Offices.

Branch or subordinate offices may at any time be established by the Board at any place or places where the Corporation is qualified to do business.

ARTICLE III
Membership

Section 1. Corporation without Members.

The Corporation shall have no members within the meaning of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law.

ARTICLE IV
Board of Trustees

Section 1. Powers.

For purposes of these Bylaws, the term “trustee” is synonymous with “director” and the directors of the Corporation shall be known as the trustees of the Corporation. In dealings with

the Secretary of State, or other governmental agencies or entities, the Corporation's trustees shall be referred to as "directors."

Subject to the limitations of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law, the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, and such California local public agency laws of general application as may be applicable to the Corporation, the activities and affairs of the Corporation shall be conducted and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board. The Board may delegate the management of the Corporation's activities to any person(s), management company or committees, however composed, provided that the activities and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised under the ultimate direction of the Board. No assignment, referral or delegation of authority by the Board or anyone acting under such delegation shall preclude the Board from exercising full authority over the conduct of the Corporation's activities, and the Board may rescind any such assignment, referral or delegation at any time.

Without prejudice to its general powers, but subject to the same limitations set forth above, the Board shall have the following powers in addition to any other powers enumerated in these Bylaws and permitted by law:

- a. To select and remove all of the officers, agents and employees of the Corporation; to prescribe powers and duties for them which are not inconsistent with law, the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws; to fix their compensation; and to require security from them for faithful service;
- b. To conduct, manage and control the affairs and activities of the Corporation and to make such rules and regulations therefor which are not inconsistent with law, the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws;
- c. To adopt, make and use a corporate seal and to alter the form of the seal from time to time;
- d. To borrow money and incur indebtedness for the purposes of the Corporation, and to cause to be executed and delivered therefor, in the corporate name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations and other evidences of debt and securities therefor;
- e. To act as trustee under any trust incidental to the principal object of the Corporation, and receive, hold, administer, exchange and expend funds and property subject to such trust;
- f. To acquire by purchase, exchange, lease, gift, devise, bequest, or otherwise, and to hold, improve, lease, sublease, mortgage, transfer in trust, encumber, convey or otherwise dispose of real and personal property; and
- g. To assume any obligations, enter into any contracts or other instruments, and do any and all other things incidental or expedient to the attainment of any corporate purpose.

Section 2. Limitations.

The Corporation is organized and operated exclusively for educational and charitable purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and meets the requirements for exemption under Section 214 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code, as amended.

The Corporation shall be nonprofit and nonpartisan. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate or intervene in any political campaign (including publishing or distribution of statements) on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office.

The Corporation shall not, except in any insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the purposes described in Article I. The Corporation may not carry on any activity for the profit of its officers, trustees or other persons or distribute any gains, profits or dividends to its officers, trustees or other persons as such. Furthermore, nothing in Article I shall be construed as allowing the Corporation to engage in any activity not permitted to be carried on (i) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or (ii) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Section 3. Dedication of Assets.

The property of this corporation is irrevocably dedicated to charitable and educational purposes meeting the requirements of Revenue and Taxation Code section 214 and no part of the net income or assets of the organization shall ever inure to the benefit of any director, officer or member thereof or to the benefit of any private person.

Upon the dissolution or final liquidation of the corporation, its assets remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities of the corporation shall be distributed to another public school that meets the requirements of Section III.A of IRS Notice 2015-07 for participation in a governmental plan under Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, or shall be distributed to the State of California, a political subdivision of the State, or an agency or instrumentality of the State or of a political subdivision of the State.

Section 4. Number of Trustees.

The number of trustees of the Corporation shall be not less than five (5) and not more than twenty-one (21), with the exact number to be determined from time to time by a resolution of the Board, unless and until changed by amendment of the Articles of Incorporation or by amendment of these Bylaws.

Section 5. Nominations and Qualifications of Trustees.

- a. There shall be up to three (3) parent trustees, one from each charter school, as follows:

- (1) One (1) trustee may be nominated by Accelerated Charter Elementary School (“ACES”) parents (i.e., grades TK-6) for consideration by the Board, voting at a meeting of such parents that has been duly held and noticed (generally, in September of each year), and each nominee shall be a parent of one or more children who are actively enrolled in ACES during such parent’s entire term as a trustee (or

alternate¹), provided that each such parent shall not be an employee, or an immediate family member (as defined in Article IV, Section 24) of an employee of the Corporation;

(2) One (1) trustee may be nominated by The Accelerated School parents (i.e., grades TK-8) for consideration by the Board, voting at a meeting of such parents that has been duly held and noticed (generally, in September of each year), and each nominee shall be a parent of one or more children who are actively enrolled in The Accelerated School during such parent's entire term as a trustee (or alternate), provided that each such parent shall not be an employee, or an immediate family member (as defined in Article IV, Section 24) of an employee of the Corporation; and

(3) One (1) trustee may be nominated by the Wallis Annenberg High School parents (i.e., grades 9-12) for consideration by the Board, voting at a meeting of such parents that has been duly held and noticed (generally, in September of each year), and each nominee shall be a parent of one or more children who are actively enrolled in the Annenberg High School during such parent's entire term as a trustee (or alternate), provided that each such parent shall not be an employee, or an immediate family member (as defined in Article IV, Section 24) of an employee of the Corporation; and

(4) If one or more of the above schools does not nominate a parent to serve as a trustee on the Board, then the Nominating Committee may, but shall not be required to, nominate a parent trustee for such school(s).

b. Los Angeles Unified School District ("LAUSD"), at its option, may appoint a representative to serve as a member of the Board in accordance with Education Code Section 47064I.

c. The remaining trustees shall be nominated by a Nominating Committee, with approval of the Board in accordance with this Article.

d. The Nominating Committee, the parents, and the LAUSD shall be referred to as "nominating entities" for purposes of this Article. The parents and the LAUSD shall submit (if they so choose) their nominations to the Board (i) no later than twenty (20) days prior to the annual Board meeting each year, and (ii) as soon as practicable on or before the effective date of any vacancy created by its nominee(s) ceasing to serve as a trustee or alternate, as applicable, but in any event no more than thirty (30) days after such effective date. The Nominating Committee shall submit its nominations to the Board (i) prior to the annual Board meeting each year, and (ii) as soon as practicable on or before the effective date of any vacancy created by its nominee(s) ceasing to serve as a trustee or alternate, as applicable, but in any event no more than thirty (30) days after such effective date.

Section 6. Appointment.

The Board shall appoint trustees at its annual meeting. In the event of a mid-term vacancy the Board shall seek to appoint a trustee to fill such vacancy at the first regularly scheduled meeting after a vacancy occurs on the Board Each nominee shall be appointed to serve as a trustee upon a majority vote

¹ Alternate trustees only assume authority if the elected trustee resigns or is removed from office.

by the Board. If the Board does not appoint a particular nominee, then the applicable nominating entity may select successive alternate nominees, until the Board appoints a nominee.

Section 7. Terms of Office of Trustees.

a. All trustees (and alternates) shall hold office for a term of one (1) to three (3) years, unless the trustee resigns or is otherwise removed from office, and until a qualified successor is appointed. All trustees (and alternates) may serve as many terms as they are appointed and qualified to serve. If the number of trustees is hereafter changed, such change will be accomplished so as to ensure that the initial staggered terms are maintained with approximately one-third (1/3) of the trustees nominated under Section 5.c. expiring each year.

Section 8. Resignation and Removal.

a. Subject to the provisions of Section 5226 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law, any trustee may resign by giving written notice to the President of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, the Secretary, or the Board. Such a written resignation will be effective on the later of (i) the date it is delivered or (ii) the time specified in the written notice that the resignation is to become effective. No trustee may resign if the Corporation would then be left without a duly appointed trustee or trustees in charge of its affairs, except upon notice to the California Attorney General (the "Attorney General"). If the resignation is effective at a future time, a successor may be nominated and appointed before such time, in accordance with the procedures set forth in Sections 5 and 6 of this Article, to take office when the resignation becomes effective.

b. Any trustee may be removed, with or without cause, by the vote of the majority of the members of the entire Board of Trustees at a special meeting called for that purpose, or at a regular meeting, provided that notice of that meeting and such removal are given in compliance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code) as said chapter may be modified by subsequent legislation ("Brown Act"). Any vacancy caused by the removal of a trustee shall be filled as provided in Section 9.

Section 9. Vacancies.

a. A Board vacancy or vacancies shall be deemed to exist if any trustee dies, resigns, is removed, no longer meets the applicable requirements for serving, or if the authorized number of trustees is increased. A vacancy in the alternates shall be deemed to exist if an alternate dies, resigns, is removed, or if the alternate no longer meets the applicable requirements for serving.

b. Notwithstanding Section 8, the Board may by resolution declare vacant the office of any trustee who has been declared of unsound mind by an order of court, or convicted of a felony, or found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached a duty under California Nonprofit Corporation Law.

c. A vacancy on the Board (or of the alternates) shall be filled using the applicable nominating and appointment process set forth in Sections 5 and 6 of this Article. Each trustee (or alternate) so appointed shall hold office for the remainder of the unexpired term, unless the trustee resigns or is otherwise removed from office, and until a qualified successor is appointed.

d. No reduction of the authorized number of trustees shall have the effect of removing any trustee prior to the expiration of the trustee's term of office.

Section 10. Place of Meeting.

Meetings of the Board shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation or at any other place within the physical boundaries of the County of Los Angeles which has been designated in the notice of the meeting. A two-way teleconference location shall be established at each schoolsite.

All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called, held and conducted in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Brown Act and Education Code section 47604.1.

Section 11. Meetings; Annual Meeting.

All meetings of the Board and its committees shall be called, noticed, and held in compliance with the provisions of the Brown Act.

Annually the Board shall meet for the purpose of organization, appointment of trustees, election of officers, adoption of the regular Board meeting schedule, and the transaction of such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting. This meeting shall be held once a year, but in no event later than June, at a time, date and place as noticed by the Board in accordance with the Brown Act.

Section 12. Regular Meetings.

At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the Board of Trustees, or its designee shall post an agenda containing a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting. Notice of the meeting will be provided in compliance with the Brown Act.

Section 13. Notice of Meetings.

At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Corporation will create a schedule of the annual and regular Board meetings for that year that contains the date, time and place of each meeting. The regular Board meeting schedule may be revised as necessary by the Board of Trustees. The President shall have the authority to reschedule a regular meeting as necessary to establish a quorum of trustees.

Section 14. Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Board for any purpose may be called at any time by the President

of the Board or a majority of the Board of Trustees. The party calling such special meeting shall determine the place, date and time thereof. In accordance with the Brown Act, special meetings of the Board of Trustees may be held only after twenty-four (24) hours-notice is given to the public through the posting of an agenda. Notice of the meeting will be provided in compliance with the Brown Act.

Section 15. Quorum.

A majority of the trustees then in office (but no fewer than two trustees or one-fifth of the authorized number in Section 4, whichever is greater) shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except to adjourn as provided in Section 19. Every act taken or decision made by a majority vote of the trustees present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is an act of the Board, unless a greater number is expressly required by California Nonprofit Corporation Law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of trustees from the meeting, if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for such meeting. Trustees may not vote by proxy. The vote or abstention of each Board member present for each action taken shall be publicly reported.

The following actions shall require a vote by a majority of all trustees then in office in order to be effective:

- a. Creation of, and appointment to, committees of the Board (but not advisory committees) as described in Section 21;
- b. Removal of a trustee without cause as described in Section 8; and
- c. Indemnification of trustees as described in Article VI.

Section 16. Action Must be Taken During a Meeting.

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board must be taken during a meeting held in compliance with the Brown Act.

Section 17. Teleconference Meetings².

Members of the Board of Trustees may participate in teleconference meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Act are complied with:

- a. At a minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of Trustees, whether participating in person or by teleconference, shall participate in the teleconference meeting from locations within the jurisdictional boundaries of the County of Los Angeles;
- b. All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call;

² Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, the Corporation may use teleconferencing without complying with the requirements of paragraphs (a), (c), and (d) if the Corporation complies with the requirements of Section 54953(e).

- c. If the Board of Trustees elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all teleconference locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting;
- d. All locations where a member of the Board of Trustees participates in a meeting via teleconference must be fully accessible to members of the public, shall be listed on the agenda, and members of the public shall be provided with an opportunity to address the Board of Trustees directly at each teleconference location³;
- e. Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting; and
- f. Members of the public attending a meeting conducted via teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.⁴

Section 18. Adjournment.

A majority of the trustees present, whether or not a quorum is present, or the President, may adjourn any trustees meeting to another time or place. Notice of such adjournment to another time or place shall be given, prior to the time scheduled for the continuation of the meeting, to the trustees who were not present at the time of the adjournment, and to the public in the manner prescribed by law.

Section 19. Rights of Inspection.

Every trustee has the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect and copy all books, records and documents of every kind and to inspect the physical properties of the Corporation and each of its subsidiaries, to the full extent permitted under applicable federal and state laws regarding pupil confidentiality. The inspection may be made in person or by the trustee's agent or attorney. The right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts of documents.

Section 20. Board Committees.

a. Executive Committee. The Board may designate an Executive Committee consisting of the President of the Board, the Vice President, the Secretary, the Treasurer who shall all be trustees, and one other trustee who shall be appointed by the Board. The Executive Committee may exercise any authority of the Board, except with respect to:

- (1) The approval of any action for which the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law requires the approval of the Board;

³ This means that members of the Board of Trustees who choose to utilize their homes or offices as teleconference locations must open these locations to the public and accommodate any members of the public who wish to attend the meeting at that location.

⁴ The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public to provide their names as a condition of attendance at the meeting.

- (2) The filling of vacancies on the Board or on any committee which has the authority of the Board;
- (3) The amendment or repeal of bylaws or the adoption of new bylaws;
- (4) The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board; and
- (5) The appointment of other committees of the Board having the authority of the Board.

b. Nominating Committee. There shall be a Nominating Committee consisting of three individuals, who may, but need not be, trustees, and who are appointed by the President of the Board, with the approval of the Board. The Nominating Committee shall perform the functions described in Section 5 of this Article and shall also nominate officers for election by the Board. In performing such functions, the Nominating Committee shall give due consideration to any applicable policies or guidelines adopted from time to time by the Board.

c. Audit Committee. In any fiscal year in which the Corporation receives or accrues gross revenues of two million dollars or more (excluding grants from, and contracts for services with, governmental entities for which the governmental entity requires an accounting of the funds received), the Board shall (i) prepare annual financial statements using generally accepted accounting principles that are audited by an independent certified public accountant (“CPA”) in conformity with generally accepted auditing standards; (ii) make the audit available to the Attorney General and to the public on the same basis that the Internal Revenue Service Form 990 is required to be made available; and (iii) appoint an Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee shall not include paid or unpaid staff or employees of the Corporation, including, if staff members or employees, the President or Chief Executive Officer or the Treasurer (if any). Members of the Finance Committee shall constitute less than 50% of the membership of the Audit Committee and the chairperson of the Audit Committee shall not be a member of the Finance Committee. Subject to the supervision of the Board, the Audit Committee shall: make recommendations to the Board on the hiring and firing of the CPA; confer with the CPA to satisfy Audit Committee members that the financial affairs of the Corporation are in order; approve non-audit services by the CPA and ensure such services conform to standards in the Yellow Book issued by the United States Comptroller General; and if requested by the Board, negotiate the CPA’s compensation on behalf of the Board.

d. Finance Committee. The Finance Committee shall act as financial advisor to the Board in all financial aspects of the Corporation, including but not limited to: overseeing the preparation of the annual operating budget, considering and making recommendations on matters of financial interest with respect to which the Board may request its consideration and action, recommending the adaptation of policies for financial management practices, and long-range financial planning. The Treasurer shall be a member of the Finance Committee. The Finance Committee may include members of the Audit Committee, subject to the requirements set forth in Section 20.c., and assuming that each is also a trustee of the Corporation.

e. Other Committees. The Board may also appoint one or more other committees each consisting of two (2) or more trustees to serve at the pleasure of the Board, and delegate to such committee any of the authority of the Board except with respect to the items listed above in Section 20.a.(1-8). Only committees comprised solely of trustees may exercise delegated authority of the Board. Any such committee must be created, and the members thereof appointed, by resolution adopted by a majority of the number of trustees then in office, and any such committee may be designated by such name as the Board shall specify. The Board shall have the power to prescribe the manner in which proceedings of any such committee shall be conducted. In the absence of any such prescription, such committee shall have the power to prescribe the manner in which its proceedings shall be conducted.

The President of the Board, subject to the limitations imposed by the Board, or the Board, may create other committees, either standing or special, to serve and advise the Board which do not have the powers and may not exercise any authority of the Board. The President of the Board, with the approval of the Board, shall appoint members to serve on such committees, and shall designate the committee chairman. If a single trustee is on a committee, he or she shall be the chairman. Each member of a committee shall continue as such until his or her successor is appointed, unless the member sooner resigns or is removed from the committee.

Section 21. Meetings of Committees.

a. Meetings and action of committees shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the Brown Act and the provisions of this Article concerning meetings of the Board, with such changes in the context of this Article as are necessary to substitute the committee and its members for the Board and its members, except that the time for regular meetings of the committees may also be called by resolution of the Board. Minutes shall be kept of each meeting of any committee and shall be filed with the corporate records. The committee shall report to the Board from time to time as the Board may require. The Board may adopt rules for the governance of any committee not inconsistent with the provisions by these Bylaws. In the absence of rules adopted by the Board, the committee may adopt such rules.

b. A majority of the committee members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of committee business, except to adjourn. A majority of the committee members present, whether or not constituting a quorum, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. Every act taken or decision made by a majority of the committee members present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as an act of the committee, subject to the provisions of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law relating to actions that require a majority vote of the entire Board. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, notwithstanding the withdrawal of committee members, if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for that meeting.

c. Any trustee may resign from a committee by giving written notice to the President of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, the Secretary, or the Board. Such a written resignation will be effective on the later of (i) the date it is delivered or (ii) the time specified in the written notice that the resignation is to become effective. The President of the Board may, with prior approval of the Board,

remove any appointed member of a committee. The President of the Board, with the Board's approval, shall appoint a member to fill a vacancy in any committee or any position created by an increase in the membership for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 22. Fees and Compensation.

Trustees and members of committees shall not receive any compensation for their services; however, the Board or its designee may approve reimbursement of a trustee's actual and necessary expenses incurred in the conduct of the Corporation's business as the Board of Trustees may establish by resolution to be just and reasonable as to the Corporation at the time that the resolution is adopted.

Section 23. Non-liability of Trustees.

The trustees shall not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or other obligations of the Corporation.

Section 24. Interested Persons.

Except as permitted by Education Code Section 47604.1(d), none of the trustees serving on the Board may be "interested persons." An "interested person" is (i) any person currently compensated by the Corporation for services rendered to it within the previous twelve (12) months whether as a full-time or part-time employee, independent contractor, or otherwise, , and (ii) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law or father-in-law (for purposes of these Bylaws, an "immediate family member") of any such person.

Section 25. Standard of Care.

The provisions of Section 5231 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law are incorporated herein.

Section 26. Contracts or Transactions With Trustees.

The Corporation shall not enter into a contract or transaction in which a trustee directly or indirectly has a material financial interest (nor shall the Corporation enter into any contract or transaction with any other corporation, firm, association, or other entity in which one or more of the Corporation's trustees are directors and have a material financial interest).

Section 27. Corporate Loans and Advances.

The Corporation shall not make any loan of money or property to or guarantee the obligation of any trustee or officer.

Section 28. Annual Report.

The Board shall cause an annual report to be prepared and sent to each trustee not later than 120 days after the close of the Corporation's fiscal year containing the following information:

- a. The assets and liabilities of the Corporation as of the end of the fiscal year;
- b. The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds, during the fiscal year;
- c. The revenue or receipts of the Corporation, both unrestricted and restricted to particular purposes, during the fiscal year;
- d. The expenses or disbursements of the Corporation for both general and restricted purposes during the fiscal year;
- e. Any information required under these Bylaws;
- f. An independent accountant's report or, if none, the certificate of an authorized officer of the Corporation that such statements were prepared without audit from the Corporation's books and records; and
- g. The report may also include any information required by Corporations Code section 6322.

ARTICLE V

Officers

Section 1. Officers.

a. The officers of this Corporation shall be a President, a Chief Executive Officer, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. Other than the President of the Board, these persons may, but need not be, selected from among the trustees. The Board shall have the power to designate additional officers, including a Vice President, who also need not be trustees, with such duties, powers, titles and privileges as the Board may fix, including such officers as may be appointed in accordance with Section 2. Any number of offices may be held by the same person, except that the Secretary and the Treasurer may not serve concurrently as either the President or the Chief Executive Officer.

b. The term of office of all officers shall be one (1) year. Any officer may be reappointed to subsequent terms of office. There shall be no limitation on the number of terms served by officers.

Section 2. Appointment of Officers.

Except as otherwise specified in these Bylaws, the officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the Board from nominees identified by the Nominating Committee.

Section 3. Subordinate Officers.

The Board may appoint and may empower the President of the Board to appoint such other officers as the business of the Corporation may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as are provided in these Bylaws or as the Board may from time to time determine.

Section 4. President of the Board of Trustees.

The President of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board. The President of the Board shall appoint all members of all standing and special committees of the Board, subject to the Board's approval, and shall appoint the chair of each such committee. The President may delegate to any other person(s) the power to appoint committee members, also subject to the Board's approval. The President of the Board may sign, with the Secretary or any other officer of the Corporation authorized by the Board, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or other instruments which the Board has authorized, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board or by these Bylaws or by statute to some other officer or agent of the Corporation; and in general he or she shall perform all duties incident to the office of President of the Board and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board from time to time.

Section 5. Vice President of the Board of Trustees.

In the absence or disability of the President of the Board, the Vice President (or if more than one (1) Vice President is appointed, in order of their rank as fixed by the Board or if not ranked, the Vice President designated by the Board) shall perform all the duties of the President and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all of the restrictions upon, the President. The Vice President shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board may prescribe from time to time.

Section 6. Chief Executive Officer.

Subject to such supervisory powers as may be given by the Board to the President, the Board may hire a chief executive who shall be the general manager of the Corporation, and subject to the control of the Board, shall supervise, direct and control the Corporation's day-to-day activities, business and affairs. The chief executive (who may be referred to as the "CEO") shall be empowered to hire, supervise and fire all of the employees of the Corporation, under such terms and having such job responsibilities as the chief executive shall determine in his or her sole discretion, subject to the rights, if any, of the employee under any contract of employment. The CEO may delegate his or her responsibilities and powers subject to the control of the Board. He or she shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws.

Section 7. Secretary.

The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal office of the Corporation the State of California, the original or a copy of the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, as amended to date, and a register showing the names of all trustees and their respective addresses. The Secretary shall keep the seal of the Corporation and shall affix the same on such papers and instruments as may be required in the regular course of business, but failure to affix it shall not affect the validity of any instrument. The Secretary also shall keep or cause to be kept at the principal office, or at such other place as the Board may order, a book of minutes of all meetings of the Board and its committees, with the time and place of holding; whether regular or special; if special how authorized; the notice thereof given; the names of the trustees present at Board of Trustees and committee meetings; the vote or abstention of each

Board member present for each action taken; and the proceedings thereof. The Secretary shall give or cause to be given notice of all the meetings of the Board required by these Bylaws or by law to be given; shall keep the seal of the Corporation in safe custody; shall see that all reports, statements and other documents required by law are properly kept or filed, except to the extent the same are to be kept or filed by the Treasurer; and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board. Upon request, the Secretary shall exhibit or cause to be exhibited at all reasonable times to any trustee, or to his or her agent or attorney, these Bylaws and the minute book.

Section 8. Treasurer.

The Treasurer shall keep and maintain or cause to be kept and maintained adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of the Corporation, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains and losses. The books of account shall at all times be open to inspection by any trustee. The Treasurer shall deposit or cause to be deposited all monies and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the Corporation in such depositories as may be designated by the Board. The Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the Corporation as shall be ordered by the Board, shall render to the President of the Board and the trustees, upon request, an account of all transactions as Treasurer. The Treasurer shall present financial statements as well as an operating statement and report in such form and substance as determined by the Board or Finance Committee, since the last preceding board meeting, to the Board at all regular meetings. The Treasurer shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board.

Section 9. Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers.

The Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers, if any, in general, shall perform such duties as shall be assigned to them by the President of the Board, Secretary or Treasurer. The Board may empower the President or CEO to appoint or remove such other officers as the business of the Corporation may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as are provided in these Bylaws or as the Board from time to time may determine.

Section 10. Removal and Resignation.

Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by the Board at any time. In the case of an officer appointed by the President of the Board, the President of the Board shall also have the power of removal. Any such removal shall be without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the officer under any contract of employment. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Corporation, but without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the Corporation under any contract to which the officer is a party, subject to the terms of any employment agreement. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 11. Vacancies.

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause, shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these Bylaws for regular election or appointment to such office, provided that such vacancies shall be filled as they occur.

Section 12. Fairness of Compensation.

The Board shall periodically review the fairness of compensation, including benefits, paid to every person, regardless of title, with powers, duties, or responsibilities comparable to the CEO or Treasurer or Chief Financial Officer (i) once the person is hired, (ii) upon any extension or renewal of such person's term of employment, and (iii) when such person's compensation is modified (unless all employees are subject to the same general modification of compensation).

ARTICLE VI

Indemnification of Trustees, Officers, Employees and Agents

Section 1. Indemnification.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Corporation shall indemnify its trustees, officers, employees, and other persons described in Corporations Code Section 5238(a), including persons formerly occupying any such positions, against all expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any "proceeding," as that term is used in that section, and including an action by or in the right of the Corporation by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that section. "Expenses," as used in this bylaw, shall have the same meaning as in that section of the Corporations Code.

On written request to the Board of Trustees by any person seeking indemnification under Corporations Code Section 5238 (b) or Section 5238 (c) the Board of Trustees shall promptly decide under Corporations Code Section 5238 (e) whether the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Corporations Code Section 5238 (b) or Section 5238 (c) has been met and, if so, the Board of Trustees shall authorize indemnification.

Section 2. Insurance.

The Corporation shall purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any agent of this Corporation against any liability asserted against or incurred by such agent in such capacity or arising out of such agent's status as such whether or not this Corporation would have the power to indemnify such agent against such liability under the provisions of this Article; provided, however, that this Corporation shall have no power to purchase and maintain such insurance to indemnify any agent of the Corporation for a violation of Section 5233 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law.

ARTICLE VII
Miscellaneous

Section 1. Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be from July 1 to June 30 of each year.

Section 2. Checks, Drafts, Etc.

All checks, drafts or other orders for payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of or payable to the Corporation and any and all securities owned by or held by the Corporation requiring signature for transfer shall be signed or endorsed by such person or persons and in such manner as from time to time shall be determined by the Board or the executive committee, if any. In the absence of any such determination by the Board, such instruments shall be signed by the President of the Board or Chief Executive Officer and countersigned by the Secretary or Treasurer.

Section 3. Endorsement or Execution of Documents and Contracts.

By resolution of the Board, general signatory authority may be granted and delegated to other persons on behalf of the Corporation. Any such instruments may be signed by any other person or persons and in such manner as from time to time shall be determined by the Board, or the President of the Board. Unless so authorized, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation to any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or amount.

ARTICLE VIII
Amendments

These Bylaws may be amended or repealed and/or new bylaws adopted only by approval of a majority of the number of trustees then in office. No amendment may extend the term of a trustee beyond that for which such trustee was appointed.

ARTICLE IX
Non-discrimination Statement

The educational institutions managed by The Accelerated Schools admit students of any race, creed, color, or of any national and ethnic origin to all the rights, privileges, programs and activities generally accorded or made available to students at such institutions. The Accelerated Schools does not discriminate on the basis of race, creed, color, or national or ethnic origin in administration of its educational policies, admissions policies, tuition assistance programs, and athletic and other school-administered programs, nor in the hiring of faculty members or other employees or in any of its programs or operations.

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I certify that I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of The Accelerated Schools, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation; that these Bylaws, consisting of 21 pages, are the Bylaws of the Corporation as adopted by the Board of Trustees on December 13, 2023; and that these Bylaws have not been amended or modified since that date.

Executed on October 15, 2025 at Los Angeles, California.

_____, Secretary

4887-6878-8115, v. 2